
 CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED AGENDA OF COUNCIL MEETING  

FEBRUARY 21, 2023 AT 10:00 AM 

NOTE:   WORK SESSION AT 9:30 AM w/ Executive Session RE: Litigation  

This is a proposed agenda which is subject to change by Mayor and Council without further notice. 
 

ROLL CALL……..FLAG SALUTE……..MOMENT OF SILENCE. 
 

MINUTES: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETINGS OF JANUARY 17, 2023 and 
FEBRUARY 7, 2023  

 

COMMUNICATIONS:   
Receive & File: 
MIDDLE TOWNSHIP, RE:  Support A646 & S2709 – Tourism Tax Fair Share Bill 
MIDDLE TOWNSHIP, RE:  Support A646 & S3388 – Redirecting $300 Million for Higher Education 
ACM JOINT INSURANCE FUND, RE: 2023 Safety Incentive Program 
ATLANTIC CITY ELECTRIC, RE:  Available Resources for Energy Bill Assistance 
BOEM/ICF, RE:  Offshore Wind Project Effects on Hereford Inlet Lighthouse 
NEW JERSEY DEP, RE:  CAFRA Permit Public Period, City of North Wildwood Beach Maintenance 
CITY HISTORIAN, RE:  Annual Historian Report for Year 2022 
 

Approve & File: 
DIRECTOR OF TOURISM, RE:  Updated 2023 Form of Application for Special Events 
OUTDOOR EVENT WITHIN COVID-EXPANSION AREA: Anglesea Pub, March 11 & 17-18, 2023 
 

APPOINTMENTS: 
Ethics Board 
Environmental Commission 
Bike Path Advisory Committee 
Public Works Dept. 
Tax/Collector & City Clerk (shared) 
 

REPORTS: 
Various Depts. 

 

ORDINANCES: 
Ord. 1897 (1st Reading) – Exceed Municipal Budget Appropriation & Establish Cap Bank 
Ord. 1898 (1st Reading) – Bond Ordinance Acquisition of Fire Apparatus  
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:  
2023 Budget of Wildwoods Boardwalk Special Improvement District (SID) 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 
1. Refund for Overpayment of Real Estate Taxes 
2. Adoption of 2023 Budget of Wildwoods Boardwalk Special Improvement District (SID) 
3. Introduction of 2023 Municipal Budget 
4. Awarding Contract for Beach Ice Cream Vending Concession 
5. Awarding Contract for Beach Umbrella Stand Concession 
6. Awarding Contract for Animal Control Services – Shore Animal Control 
7. Awarding Professional Services Contract – Stockton University Coastal Research Center 
8. Authorizing Acquisition of Cargo Truck w/ Trade-In No Longer Needed for Public Use 
9. Authorizing Application and Acceptance of ARPA Infrastructure Grant  

 

VOUCHER LIST/FINANCE: Authorizing payment of all approved vouchers   
  
COUNCIL: 
PUBLIC: 
ADJOURNMENT:  

 
Next Regular Meeting:  Tuesday, March 7, 2023 @ 5:00 p.m. 







































 

 
 

ATLANTIC COUNTY 
 MUNICIPAL JOINT INSURANCE FUND 

 
 

2023 SAFETY  
INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

 
 
 
 

 
 

January 1, 2023 
 



2023 Safety Incentive Program 

2 

 
 

ATLANTIC COUNTY MUNICIPAL JOINT INSURANCE FUND 
2023 SAFETY INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 
INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................................... 3 
 
HOW THE PROGRAM WORKS ........................................................................................................ 4 
 
2023 SAFETY INCENTIVE PROGRAM SIZE CATAGORIES ............................................................. 4 
 
REQURIED ELEMENTS TO QUALIFY FOR AWARDS ....................................................................... 5 
 
SAFETY INCENTIVE AWARDS ......................................................................................................... 5 
 
2023 SAFETY CONTRACT .............................................................................................................. 6 
 
SAFETY BEST PRACTICES .............................................................................................................. 9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



2023 Safety Incentive Program 
 

 3 

INTRODUCTION 
 
The 2023 Safety Incentive Program provides members of the ATLANTIC COUNTY MUNICIPAL 
JOINT INSURANCE FUND with a blueprint for success with their safety programs. Best 
practices and suggestions are provided through your safety consultants and within this 
document. As we continue to "Change the Way We Think about Safety," we acknowledge that 
health and wellness initiatives play a role in safe work practices, employee morale, and claims 
management.   
 
To change behaviors and promote workplace Safety and Wellness, we need to have both a 
"Top Down" and "Grassroots-Led" program. We remind all members that the key to an effective 
safety program starts with management and the Safety Committee. Our program is based on 
the six essential elements required to have an effective program: Management Commitment, 
Controlling Hazards, Continuing Education, Communication, Coaching, and Claims 
Management.   
 
Our goal is to help every member succeed with their safety program and qualify for Safety 
Incentive Awards.  We encourage members to make full use of all the JIF and MEL services, 
including instructor-led and online training through the MEL Safety Institute, Safety Bulletins, 
Toolbox Topics, Regional Training Topics, and Law Enforcement Resources, to name a few.  
Please reach out to your Safety Consultants if you have any questions: 
 
 

Keith Hummel 
Associate Public Sector Director 
khummel@jamontgomery.com 

Office: 856-552-6862  
Mailing Address: 

 
TRIAD 1828 CENTRE 

Cooper Street, 18th Floor 
Camden, NJ 08102 

 
P.O. Box 99106 

Camden, NJ 08101 

Robert Garish 
Assistant Director Public Sector 

rgarish@jamontgomery.com 
Office: 856-552-4650 

Chief Harry Earle (Ret.) 
Law Enforcement Consultant 
hearle@jamontgomery.com 

Office: 856-446-9277 

John Saville 
Assistant Director Public Sector 

jsaville@jamontgomery.com 
Office: 732-736-5009 

Melissa Meccariello 
Administrative Assistant 

mmeccariello@jamontgomery.com  
Office: 856-479-2070 

Thomas Reilly 
Risk Control Consultant 

treily@jamontgomery.com 
Office: 856-446-9205 

 
   
 
 

  

mailto:khummel@jamontgomery.com
mailto:rgarish@jamontgomery.com
mailto:hearle@jamontgomery.com
mailto:jsaville@jamontgomery.com
mailto:mmeccariello@jamontgomery.com
mailto:treily@jamontgomery.com


2023 Safety Incentive Program 
 

 4 

HOW THE PROGRAM WORKS 
 
• JIF Safety Consultants are required to review program records. Safety Coordinators are 

encouraged to maintain these program records in a centrally located file. The file should 
contain the members' Safety Committee Minutes, Hazard Inspections, Training Records, 
Job Safety Observations, and any other documentation that would assist with an objective 
evaluation of the member's program efforts. Maintenance of this file will assist in making 
sure that the member receives full credit for their efforts.  

• Members will qualify or not qualify (Pass or Fail). The program runs on a calendar year 
basis. 

• Wellness suggestions have been incorporated into the program. 
 

2023 SAFETY INCENTIVE PROGRAM SIZE CATEGORIES 
 

M Absecon  L Middle Township  
M Avalon  XL Millville 
L Brigantine  S Mullica 
S Buena   XS Newfield 
L Cape May City  L North Wildwood 

XS Cape May Point  M Northfield 
XS Commercial   XL Ocean City 
XS Corbin City  XL Pleasantville 
XS Deerfield   L Sea Isle City 
S Dennis   M Somers Point 

XS Downe   M Stone Harbor 
XL Egg Harbor Township  S Upper Deerfield  
XS Estell Manor  M Upper Twp. 
XS Folsom   L Ventnor 
XL Galloway   M Waterford  
XL Hamilton   XS West Cape May 
M Linwood  XS West Wildwood 
S Longport   XS Weymouth  
L Lower   XL Wildwood 
L Margate  M Wildwood Crest 
   XS Woodbine 

 
 

XS – Extra Small (12)    S-Small (5)    M- Medium (9)    L-Large (8)    XL – Extra Large (7) 
 

41 Total Member Towns   
 
 
 
 

 



2023 Safety Incentive Program 
 

 5 

REQUIRED ELEMENTS TO QUALIFY  
 

1. Submit your Safety Committee schedule (Pg. 8) by February 24, 2023 
2. Send delegate to the Safety Kickoff Breakfast on March 23, 2023 
3. Sign and return the 2023 Safety Contract (Pg. 6/7) by March 24, 2023  
4. Send a delegate to at least one half-day JIF Annual Planning Retreat (TBD) session.  
5. Show significant participation and commitment in all best practices listed on pages 

9 and 10 
6. Members will hold, at a minimum, quarterly Safety Committee meetings. Include 

representation from all departments. 
7. Members must have representation at all applicable Regional Training events. 
8. Complete a minimum of (1) quarterly Job Safety Observation (JSO) in each 

applicable department within a calendar year. 
• Police Department 
• Fire / EMS Departments  
• Public Works Department  

* Lifeguards will complete a minimum of (4) JSOs per season* 
* Administration will complete a minimum of (1) JSO within a calendar year* 

9. Complete a minimum of (12) Toolbox / Safety Talks throughout the year. 
10. Complete a minimum of (6) Safety/Facility Checklists in each applicable 

Department / Amenity within a calendar year. 
• Administrative / Police Department 
• Fire / EMS Departments 
• Public Works Department 
• Parks/Playgrounds/Skate Park/Boardwalk/Lifeguards/Unique Exposures 

 
SAFETY INCENTIVE AWARDS 

 

Level X-Small Small Medium Large X-Large 

NON-
QUALIFIER 0 0 0 0 0 

MAXIMUM 
AWARD $2,000.00 $2,250.00 $2,500.00 $2,750.00 $3,000.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2023 Safety Incentive Program 
 

 6 

2023 SAFETY CONTRACT 
ATLANTIC COUNTY MUNICIPAL JOINT INSURANCE FUND 

 
We, the governing body of ___________________________________________ recognize the 
important role an effective safety program plays in lowering employee injury rates, reducing 
lost time accidents, and cutting insurance costs, all of which contribute to greater employee 
safety and lower tax rates.  Health and Safety must never be compromised.  Employee safety, 
along with the safety of the public, is our number one priority.  We applaud the JIF's initiative 
in providing many of the safety resources needed to enhance our local safety efforts, and we 
hereby declare our support of the JIF's safety programs. We strive to achieve an accident-free 
environment through a health and safety culture built on:  
 

• TRUST:  We respect each other's opinions and decisions and will follow through on all 
health and safety concerns 

• CARE:  We approach each day with the determination to care for ourselves, co-workers, 
and the community we serve. 

• KNOWLEDGE:  We seek the education and skills to properly fulfill our responsibilities. 
• COMMUNICATION:  We communicate with each other in a transparent, open, and honest 

manner. 
 

Because mutual respect is so important, we cannot tolerate harassment or other forms of 
discrimination. 

 
We place "Safety and Wellness" on the Council Agenda at least once a year.  
 
We understand the Safety Best Practices and will continue to promote all elements. 
 
We have established a Safety Committee that meets at least quarterly. 
 
We encourage supervisors to make "daily safety contact" with employees. 
 
We manage our claims by reporting all claims promptly, offering transitional duty, and 
investigating incidents and near misses. 
 
We establish a motor vehicle fleet safety program. 
 
We keep our regulatory training and written programs current. 
 
We conduct periodic Hazard Inspection Surveys and Job Safety Observations. 
 
We actively promote and support Health and Wellness activities.  
 
Accepted by: 
 
___________________________________   __________________ 
(Mayor)        Date 
 
__________________________________   __________________ 
(Administrator/Clerk/Manager)          Date 

 
 



2023 Safety Incentive Program 
 

 7 

 
Municipality: ____________________________________ 

 
The following applicable departments participate in the Safety Incentive Program: 

 Department Department Head 
Signature 

Date 

 Public Works   

 Building & Facilities 
Maintenance 

  

 Police   

 Fire   

 EMS   

 Utility / Water & 
Sewer 

  

 Parks & Recreation   

 Administrative    

 OEM   

 Beach Patrol / 
Lifeguards 

  

 
 

To participate in the Safety Incentive Program, please sign and return the completed Safety Contract 
(Pg. 6/7) to the Safety Director by March 24, 2023, to: 

 
 

J. A. Montgomery Consulting, Attn: Melissa Meccariello 
P.O. Box 99106 

Camden, New Jersey 08101   
E-mail: mmeccariello@jamontgomery.com 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

mailto:mmeccariello@jamontgomery.com


2023 Safety Incentive Program 
 

 8 

2023 Safety Committee Meetings Dates: 
 

1. Members will hold, at a minimum, quarterly Safety Committee meetings. 
2. Please include the meeting location, date, and time.  
3. Complete and return by 2/24/23. 

 
#1 
Date: 
 
Location 
 
Time: 

#2 
Date: 
 
Location: 
 
Time: 

#3 
Date: 
 
Location: 
 
Time: 

#4 
Date: 
 
Location: 
 
Time: 

#5 
Date: 
 
Location 
 
Time: 

#6 
Date: 
 
Location: 
 
Time: 

#7 
Date: 
 
Location: 
 
Time: 

#8 
Date: 
 
Location: 
 
Time: 

#9 
Date: 
 
Location 
 
Time: 

#10 
Date: 
 
Location: 
 
Time: 

#11 
Date: 
 
Location: 
 
Time: 

#12 
Date: 
 
Location: 
 
Time: 

 
To participate in the Safety Incentive Program, please sign and return the completed Safety 

Committee Meeting dates to the Safety Director by February 24, 2023, to: 
 
 

J. A. Montgomery Consulting, Attn: Melissa Meccariello 
P.O. Box 99106 

Camden, New Jersey 08101   
E-mail mmeccariello@jamontgomery.com 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

mailto:mmeccariello@jamontgomery.com


2023 Safety Incentive Program 
 

 9 

SAFETY BEST PRACTICES 
 

 
1. COMMITMENT AND ACCOUNTABILITY   

� Understand the Atlantic JIF Loss Control Policy. 
� Understand the Roles and Responsibilities of the Safety Coordinator. 
� Place "Safety and Wellness" on the governing body agenda at least once a year. 
� Management sets the tone - supports safety and wellness efforts. 

 
*Remember to utilize the Atlantic JIF Website (www.acmjif.org) and MEL website 

(www.njmel.org) for all resources 
 
2. CONTROLLING HAZARDS 

� Inspect all municipal facilities, playgrounds, walkways, and public areas for safety 
concerns and promptly take corrective action.  Maintain written records.   

� Maintain the 'Roadway, Sign, and Walkway" Program (RSW) that includes inspections, 
record keeping, and prompt correction of hazards. A log of inspection items, complaints, 
and corrective actions is maintained, and referrals are made to the proper authorities. This 
should include Boardwalks or similar if applicable to a member town.  

� Conduct Job Safety Observations to identify at-risk behaviors and conditions by observing 
employees at work and giving immediate feedback. 

� Complete all Outstanding Suggestions for Improvement promptly. Member towns should 
not have any "Important" SFIs that are more than two years old and no Outstanding 
"Urgent" SFIs that have not been addressed. 

� Maintain a written fleet safety program. Conduct annual MVR checks for drivers and abide 
by DOT and CDL requirements. 

� Maintain and update written regulatory programs, including:  
• Hazard Communication / RTK / Central File 
• Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan 
• LockOut / TagOut 
• PPE Hazard Assessments 
• Emergency Action / Fire Protection 
• Indoor Air Quality 
• Hearing Conservation Program  
• Confined Space Entry 
• Respiratory Protection Plan 
• OSHA Logs (300/ 300A) 

� Utilize Departmental Summary Reports.  
 

 
 
3. CONTINUING EDUCATION AND TRAINING  

� Assign a Training Administrator for the MEL Safety Institute. 
� Make sure safety training is up to date. Utilize the Training Needs Assessment Guide. 
� Provide new employees with safety orientation during their first month of work.  
� Attend applicable Regional Training workshops.  
� Make use of the safety and wellness videos from the MSI DVD / MSI NOW. 
� Utilize the MEL Safety Institute - MSI LIVE, JIF Website, MEL Website, MEL Mobile App,  

S:ERVE, Distracted Driving Resources, and First Responder Resources.  
 

http://www.acmjif.org/
http://www.njmel.org/


2023 Safety Incentive Program 
 

 10 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS 

� Promote daily safety contact. Start every job/workday with a pre-shift briefing. 
� Use Toolbox meetings and safety videos.  
� Hold regular Safety Committee meetings (at least 4 per year/quarterly) and encourage all 

members' full participation. Keep written agendas and minutes.   
� Put "Health & Wellness" on the Safety Committee agenda.   
� Maintain safety and wellness communication center and keep it current.  
� Post and review Safety Director Bulletins / Messages.  
� Utilize MEL Mobile App.  
� Promote the concept of "Zero Harm" in everyday activity. 

 
 
5. COACHING 

� Conduct Job Safety Observations to identify at-risk behaviors and conditions by observing 
employees and giving immediate feedback; Include ergonomics and proper body 
mechanics in the observations 

� Remind one another to work safely. 
� Complete or update Job Hazard Assessments and review them with crew members. 
� Encourage Supervisors to attend MSI classes with their employees. 

 
 
6. CLAIMS MANAGEMENT  

� Report all claims promptly (within three (3) days of the incident). 
� Implement a Transitional Duty Program. 
� Investigate incidents and "near misses" to uncover responsible conditions. Complete and 

submit the "Supervisors Incident Report" form on All Claims. 
� Review incident reports at Safety Meetings. Fact-Finding vs. Fault Finding. Assign follow-

up actions, including what to do, who will be responsible, and by when. 
� Share claims summary/performance with the governing body at least annually. 
� Maintain Roadway, Sign, and Walkway logs, inspection records, audits, and equipment 

inventories for all playgrounds. 
 

 
7. HEALTH & WELLNESS 

� Keep Health & Wellness on the Safety Agenda. 
� Create/Adopt a Wellness Policy.  
� Promote / Encourage Wellness activities throughout all departments.  
� Make Wellness an ongoing process throughout the year.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

































 

   City of North Wildwood  
   Special Event Application Form 
 
Name of Event: ___________________________________________________________________________________  
          
Date of Event: ______________________________ Date of Application: ____________________________ 
 
Type of Event (check one) 
 
□ Parade / Procession  □ Festival □ 1Day □ multi-day □ Block Party  □ Bonfire 
 
□ Craft Show □ 1Day □ multi-day □ Walk / Run (1K-5K-10K) / Triathlon / Bike / Marathon / Race 
 
□ Ceremony / Celebration / Demonstration  □ Polar Plunge / Water Event  □ Car Show 
 
□ Film / Photography  □ Stage Request Only  □ Other: _____________________ 
 
The City of North Wildwood requires all organizations, corporations, and/or individuals planning to stage an event file 
an official application with the Recreation & Tourism Department.  This application must be fully completed, 
signed, and forwarded to the Recreation & Tourism Department 90 days in advance of the event date unless 
waived by the Mayor and/or governing body. 
 
(City Code 382-23)  A “special event” is an event sponsored by an organization who desires to use portion of the public 
streets or other public property, or avail itself of public facilities.  Such event must be sponsored by a corporation 
(nonprofit or for profit), authorized to do business in the State of New Jersey, a nonprofit civic association, a charitable 
association, a religious association or any other association of persons.  Special events shall include, by way of example 
and not by way of limitation, such events as parades, festivals, craft fairs, art shows, athletic contests, running races, 
bicycle races, fund raising events and similar events of which may include entertainment. 
 
(City Code 382-24)  There shall be an application fee charged to each organization, excluding municipal operations, 
operating a special event in the sum of $25.00 for non-profit and $50.00 for for-profit entities. 
 
All applications will have a 30-day review.  Some may require a 14 day and 7 day review prior to their event. 

 
 

SECTION 1 – ORGANIZATION INFORMATION 
 
1) Name of Organization: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
2) Address of Organization: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
3) Purpose of Organization: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
4) How many members are in your organization: __________  
 
5) Is your organization tax exempt: (please circle)   YES NO  Is this a non-profit event   YES  NO 
 
6) NJ Registered Charitable Organization#: _______________ Tax ID#: ____________________   
 
 
 



 

SECTION 1 – ORGANIZATION INFORMATION CONT 
 
1) Organizer Contact Information:              
     
 

Name of  Event Chairperson / Organizer 

Title Cell Phone 

Address / City / State / Zip 

Email 

 
 

Name of  Event Chairperson / Organizer 

Title Cell Phone 

Address / City / State / Zip 

Email 

 
 

SECTION 2 – APPLICATION AUTHORIZATION 
 
 
 
I, ______________________________________________, the undersigned state that I am the duly  
                  Name of Applicant 
 
authorized representative of the ____________________________________________________________ 
        Name of Organization 
 
in addition, the information provided in this application is correct to the best of my knowledge.  I understand that some 
of the information is preliminary in nature and I will provide updated information as it becomes available.  I further 
agree to abide by changes made to the proposed event as indicated when so granted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________________  ______________________ 
Applicant Signature        Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SECTION 3 – EVENT INFORMATION 
 
1)  Official Name of Event: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
2) Location of Event (please list city venue requirements by day/date): ______________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3) Describe Event Activities: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4) Will the event be held for the sole purpose of advertising any product, goods, or event:  YES   NO 
 
5) If yes, describe in detail: ___________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6) Will alcohol be served or sold by event organizers or others:             YES NO   
       
 A) Do you have a ABC/Social Affairs Permit:     YES NO 
   
 B) Are you requesting approval for open display of alcohol:    YES NO 
 
 C) Designated Hours for open display of alcohol:  __________________________________ 
  
 D) Designated Location of open display of alcohol:  _________________________________ 
  
 E) Other Conditions:  _________________________________________________________ 
              If alcohol is being sold at the event, the organizer is responsible to identify patrons of    
              legal age to consume alcohol and provide the patron with a wristband after identification 
              was properly checked. 
 
8) Rain Date or Delayed Starting Time:  _________________________________________________ 
 
9) Schedule Details: (Include a copy of program schedule/timeline/description of events) 
    1st Day   2nd Day  3rd Day   4th Day 

Day of the Week 
(SU,M,TU,W,TH,F,SA) 
 

    

Date 
(MM/DD/YY) 

    

Set-Up 
(00:00AM/PM) 

    

Event Starts 
(00:00 AM/PM) 

    

Event Ends 
(00:00 AM/PM) 

    

Clean-Up 
(00:00 AM/PM) 

    



 
 

SECTION 3 – EVENT INFORMATION CONTINUE 
 
10) Will the event require site to remain in place overnight, or will the site be broken down each night 
      (partially or completely)  Explain: _________________________________________________________ 
 
      __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
11) Describe how you plan to provide security for the event: ____________________________________ 
 
     ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
     a) Private Security Company (name/address/contact person/phone): ________________________________ 
 
        _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 12) If an event management company is contracted to handle the event, please provide the following     
       information: 
 
Company Name: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: __________________________________  City/ST/Zip: ______________________ 
 
Contact Person: __________________________________ Phone: ___________________________ 
 
Portion/s of event that the company is responsible for: _____________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
     

 
ALL EVENTS MUST SUBMIT A DETAILED SITE PLAN 

Site plan should include port-a-pots, vendors, stage(s), electrical hook-ups, road closings, etc. 
 
 
 

SECTION 4 – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
1) Name of Insurance Company: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
     Policy Number: ________________________ 
 
     Limits of Liability: _____________________ 
 
Events are required to provide the City of North Wildwood with a Certificate of Insurance indicating the 
continuation of insurance coverage and designating the City of North Wildwood as an    “Additionally Insured.”   
 
A copy of the Additional Insured Endorsement page(s) must be provided with the certificate. 
 
 
 

 
 



 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 
 

Evidence of financial responsibility from event chairperson, organization and others with whom the City of North 

Wildwood does business is required.  Evidence should be in the form of a document that is issued by an insurance 

company or their authorized representative, which spells out the insurance coverage in force at the dates and times the 

special event will occur.  It does not serve as a binder and does not confer rights upon the holder.  The policy must be 

current and not expire before or on the dates of the event.  The City of North Wildwood reserves the right to require 

complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by 

these specifications at any time.  

 The Director of Tourism and Special Events, City Administrator or City of North Wildwood Mayor and 

Council may refuse to grant the use of permission to execute the Special Event whenever in their judgment there is 

good reason why permission should be refused.  They shall not be required to give a reason for such refusal. 

 Individuals – Block Parties or any other oriented parties 
 

Non-Profit/Charitable Groups – Civic Groups, Social Groups, Support Groups or any other group that does 
not gain profits. 
 
Commercial Rental – Any organization that is for profit (i.e. Associations, Corporations, Partnerships, etc. …) 

 
I. INDIVIDUALS 
 A. General Liability Limit     $500,000 
 Evidence that the individual has comprehensive personal liability insurance in force is required to use any City 
 of North Wildwood property or facility.  This would be in the form of Homeowners, Condo, or Tenant’s policy 
 where the personal liability coverage is included along with other coverage for the individual.  A copy of the 
 policy needs to be kept on file with the Special Event Application as evidence of coverage. 
 B. Executed Hold Harmless Agreement required with Special Event Application.  The Special Event shall  
 not be allowed to occur or to use the City of North Wildwood until it has been obtained the insurance required 
 under this contract.  All coverage shall be with insurance carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the 
 State of New Jersey and acceptable to the City of North Wildwood.  If the organization/individual contracts 
 with a vendor, evidence of adequate insurance coverage will need to be secured from them.     
 
II. NON-PROFIT/CHARITABLE GROUPS 
 A. General Liability Limit (Per Occurrence)    $1,000,000 
 B. Liquor Liability Limit (Per Occurrence) (If alcohol is present) $1,000,000 
 C. City of North Wildwood, N.J. named as “Additional Insured” with Endorsement page(s) to read as  
  follows: 
   The City of North Wildwood 
   901 Atlantic Avenue 
   North Wildwood, NJ 08260 
 D. Executed Hold Harmless Agreement required with Special Event Application.  The       Special Event 

shall not be allowed to occur or use the City of North Wildwood until it has  obtained the insurance 
required under this contract.  All coverage shall be with insurance  carriers licensed and admitted to do business 
in the State of New Jersey and acceptable to the City of North Wildwood.  If the organization/individual 
contracts with a vendor, evidence of  adequate insurance coverage will need to be secured from them. 

 E. Sports Associations must show evidence that their General Liability Policy will respond to injuries 
sustained by athletic participants, and/or show a Certificate of Insurance evidencing an Athletic Participant’s 
Medical Policy. 

 



 
III. COMMERCIAL (FOR PROFIT) GROUPS 
 A. Commercial General Liability Limit    $1,000,000 
   Combine Single Limit of Liability for Bodily Injury and Property Damage. 
 B. Liquor Liability Limit (Per Occurrence) (If alcohol is present) $1,000,000 
 C. City of North Wildwood, N.J. named as “Additional Insured” with Endorsement page(s) to read as  
  follows: 
   The City of North Wildwood 
   901 Atlantic Avenue 
   North Wildwood, NJ 08260 
 D. Executed Hold Harmless Agreement required with Special Event Application.  The Special Event shall 

not be allowed to occur or use the City of North Wildwood until it has obtained the insurance required under 
this contract.  All coverage shall be with insurance carriers licensed and admitted to do business in the State of 
New Jersey and acceptable to the City of North Wildwood.  If the organization/individual contracts with a 
vendor, evidence of adequate insurance coverage will need to be secured from them. 

 E. Sports Associations must show evidence that their General Liability Policy will respond to injuries 
sustained by athletic participants, and/or show a Certificate of Insurance evidencing an Athletic Participant’s 
Medical Policy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HOLD HARMLESS 



 
 
NAME OF ORGANIZATION/USER_______________________________________________________ will be 
referred to as USER from this point forward. USER shall indemnify, save harmless and defend the City of North 
Wildwood, its elected and appointed officials, its employees, agents, volunteers and others working on behalf of the 
City of North Wildwood, from and against any and all claims, losses, costs, attorney’s fees, damages, or injury 
including death and/or property loss, expense claims or demands arising out of  User’s use of the named 
Facility(ies)/Equipment, including all suits or actions of every kind or description brought against the City of North 
Wildwood, either individually or jointly with USER for or on account of any damage or injury to any person or 
persons or property, caused or occasioned or alleged to have been caused by, or on account of, any of the activities 
conducted by or caused to be conducted by USER, or through any negligence or alleged negligence in safeguarding the 
FACILITY(IES)/EQUIPMENT, participants, or members of the public, or through any act, omission or fault or 
alleged act, omission or fault or alleged act, omission or fault of the USER, its employees, agents, volunteers, 
subcontractors or others under the direction, control or under any contractual relationship with the USER.  The above 
USER shall inspect the described FACILITY (IES) / EQUIPMENT prior to the use of the 
FACILITY(IES)/EQUIPMENT and report any defective, hazardous or dangerous conditions found at the 
FACILITY(IES)/EQUIPMENT to an Appointed Recreation Supervisor and/or Public Works Supervisor at (609) 
522-2955 or (609) 522-4646, and USER shall immediately cease the use of the FACILITY(IES)/EQUIPMENT until 
such defective, hazardous or dangerous conditions are remedied.  After the use of the 
FACILITY(IES)/EQUIPMENT, USER shall immediately report to the City of North Wildwood any and all defects, 
hazards, damages or dangerous conditions upon or adjacent to the FACILITY(IES) / EQUIPMENT. 

INSURANCE 
Notwithstanding the indemnification and defense obligations of the USER, USER shall purchase and maintain such 
insurance described in the attached schedule and as is appropriate for the type of use and hazards present and as will 
provide protection from any and all covered claims which may arise out of or caused or alleged to have been caused in 
any manner from User’s use of the FACILITY(IES) / EQUIPMENT, whether it is to be used by the USER, its 
employees, agents, volunteers, subcontractors or others under the direction, control or under any contractual 
relationship with the USER or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.  Where indicated, the USER shall 
be required to name the City of North Wildwood as an “Additional Insured” on the User’s policy of commercial 
general liability insurance, and simultaneously with the delivery of the executed Use of Facilities Agreement or Special 
Event Application, USER shall provide the City of North Wildwood with a Certificate of Insurance indicating that the 
insurance coverage as described in the attached schedule, and as is appropriate for the type of use and hazards present, 
has been obtained and that the City of North Wildwood has been designated as an “Additional Insured” where 
required.  The USER shall also provide the Additional Insured Endorsement page(s) to be included with the Certificate.  
On or before the renewal date of said policy, USER shall be required to provide the City of North Wildwood with a 
Certificate of Insurance indicating the continuation of insurance coverage and designating the City of North 
Wildwood as an “Additional Insured” for the duration of this agreement.  The schedule of insurance and the limits of 
liability for the insurance shall provide coverage for not less than the amounts listed in the attached schedule or greater 
where required by law. 

COVID-19 
USER verifies and asserts that all activities conducted at the FACILITY(IES) shall be in full compliance with the 
CDC, DOH Guidelines and the State of New Jersey Governor’s Executive Orders applicable to public pools, summer 
camps, sports leagues, and recreation programs with can be reviewed at: 
https://nj.gov/infobank/eo/056murphy/approved/eo_archive.html 
USER shall be responsible for all participants or guests complying with any social distancing or masks/face covering 
requirements of the state or Federal government which are in effect. 

Signed by an authorized representative of the USER and the City of North Wildwood on 
this _____ day of _______________, 20_____. 

 
_________________________________________    _______________________________________ 

USER (SIGNATURE)       CITY REPRESENTATIVE 

_________________________________________    _______________________________________ 
USER (PRINT NAME)       CITY REPRESENTATIVE (PRINT) 

BONFIRE EVENT 



 
 

North Wildwood Fire Department Bonfire Permit Requirements: 
  
1) All requests must be reviewed by the Fire Prevention Office and then approved by the Fire Chief prior to issuing a 
permit.  All approved bonfires are the sole responsibility of the fire department. 
 
2) Bonfires may be cancelled or postponed when emergency fire department response activity has occurred on the same 
date of the scheduled event, which would preclude our ability to staff or supervise the event. 
 
3) Bonfires will be cancelled during any period in which the State or County Fire Warden has established a ban on 
open burning.  
  
4) The Chief will appoint a designated Incident Commander who will be the sole authority in command of the ignition 
and all other conditions affecting the actual fire. 
  
5) All bonfires will utilize logs acquired by DPW for a fee of $1,000.  This will include up to 50 logs purchased and 
assembled into a pyramid shape and all clean up fees.  
  
6) The location and preparation of the land to be used for the bonfire must be accessible to current fire department 
apparatus or vehicles, and free of brush, grass, or protected dunes in the immediate area.    
  
7) Sufficient fire department personnel must be available and present for the duration of event including ignition and 
extinguishment. 
  
8) The hosting agency must provide a liaison person to coordinate the event schedule and conditions with the Incident 
Commander.  The liaison shall remain present and accessible to the IC for the duration of the event.  The hosting 
agency may designate the individuals as needed so long as the information pertaining to the event is consistent. 
  
9) The IC shall order removed any person or persons that act in an unsafe manner or that otherwise creates a hazard to 
their safety of civilian attendees or that interferes with the operation or authority of the fire department. 
  
10) The fire department is responsible for the complete extinguishment of the fire.  Upon the termination of the event, 
the event-hosting agency shall announce the termination of the event and begin disassembly of all personnel prior to 
beginning the extinguishment of the fire. 
  
11) The Fire Chief or IC shall order immediate extinguishment of the fire at any time weather conditions, continuous 
disruption by attendees, unsafe acts,  or circumstances that require the full mobilization of the fire department for an 
emergency situation. 
  
12) No outside agency or fire department will be called or considered for operation without the consent of the Fire 
Chief or the IC. 
  
 
 
____________________________________________________  ____________________ 
Chairperson / Organizer / Designee Signature       Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 

POLAR PLUNGE / WATER EVENT 
 



 
 

1) All Plunges/Splashes (any event that enters the ocean water) will be held at the 15th street beach or the area      
    designated by the NWBP Chief.  
 
2) The event must originate at the 15th street beach.  
     (No marches or parades to the beach event) 
 
3) Event organizer to provide adequate event staff in clearly marked attire.  (shirts & badges) 
 
4) The event organizer must coordinate pre-registration amounts on a weekly basis to Police  
    Department.   
    (Police department to disseminate information to Admin, Fire, Beach, PW & Recreation Departments)   
  
5) Event organizer to notify participants and event staff of Hypothermia symptoms 
 
6) Time of event cannot exceed one hour 
 
7) Time in the water for all participants is not to exceed 15 Minutes 
 
8) Area of the event entry to the water is to be clearly marked 
 
9) Entry to the water at once (rope drop and countdown) 
 
10) NO CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES PRIOR TO THE EVENT 
  
11) NO CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES DURING THE EVENT 
 
12) NO PARTICIPANTS ALLOWED TO PARTICIPATE IF VISIBLY INTOXICATED  
 
13) Must have approved State Police application to hold a marine event  
   
14) Attire of plungers must be acceptable as beachwear, at a minimum and no changing of clothes    
     on the beach. 
                                                                                                                                                                                  
15) Any Additional Cost to any Department involved in the event is to be borne by event organizer or  
      the organization  
 
16) Only vehicles with city authorization are permitted on the beach during the event.  (Visible Pass)  
   
17) There will be a pre-event meeting within two weeks prior to the event to discuss all of the above 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________________  ____________ 
Chairperson / Organizer / Designee Signature      Date 
 
 
 
 
 

PARADE / PROCESSION / CAR SHOW 
 



 
1) Proposed Parade Route (include turn-by-turn directions): __________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2) Starting Location & Ending Location (identify on site-plan): _____________________________________ 
 
3) Assembly Area & Disbanding Area (identify on site-plan): ______________________________________ 
 
 _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4) Location of Reviewing/Judging Stands & Bleachers (identify on site-plan): ___________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5) Number of Participants: __________   Number of Spectators: __________ Number of Animals: ________ 
 
6) Number of Bands / Musical Units: __________ Number of Floats: __________      
 
7)  Number of Cars / Trucks: __________      (Certain height restrictions may apply due to overhead wires) 
 
8) Number of Buses: __________     Will you require Off-Site Bus Parking?  YES       NO  
 
9) If yes, how much Off-Site Parking will you need: ______________________________________________ 
 
10) Is Bollard Removal Required?   YES       NO  
  Bollard Location:  ____________________________________________________________ 
 
  Removal Time:  ______________________________________________________________ 
        
        A NW Police officer must be present on scene to authorize removal and reinstallation of bollards 
 
11) All Parades must have at least one designated Parade Marshall on location, during assembly, operation,   
       and disbanding. 

 

Name of  Parade Marshall  / Coordinator 

Title Cell Phone 

Address / City / State / Zip 

Email  

 

12) Special Guests (i.e., Mascot, Politician, Musician, Controversial, Actor, Actress, Media Person):  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

WALK / RUN (1K-5K-10K) / TRIATHLON / BIKE / MARATHON / RACE 
 
1) Proposed Route (include turn-by-turn directions): _________________________________________________  



 
 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2) List Any Street Closings (identify on site-plan):  _________________________________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   
3) Entrance Fee Charged:      YES    NO   Amount:  $_________  
 
4) Beneficiary: ___________________________________________________________________________  
 
5) Event Distance(s): ______________________________________________________________________   
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6) Do participants complete a registration form:  YES  NO 
    (Please include a registration form with application)          
 
7) Number of Participants: __________     How many volunteers will staff the event: __________ 
 
8) Starting & Ending Location (identify on site-plan): ______________________________________________ 
 
 ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
9) Assembly & Disbanding Area (identify on site-plan): ____________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
10) Location(s) of Water Stations (identify on site-plan): ____________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
11) Location of First Aid Tent (identify on site-plan): _______________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
12) Explain your First Aid / Medical Plan: _____________________________________________________   
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
13) Special Guests (i.e., Mascot, Politician, Musician, Controversial, Actor, Actress, Media Person):  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 

BLOCK PARTY 
 

1) Location (site-plan): ____________________________________________________________________    
 



 
2) List any Street Closings (site-plan): ________________________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
 
3) Purpose: ______________________________________________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4) Date(s): ___________________________________    Hours: ___________________________________       
 
5) Estimated number of people attending: _______________  
 
6) Type of Music or Entertainment: ___________________________________________________________  
 
7) Name of DJ or Entertainer: _______________________________________________________________  
 
    DJ or Entertainer Contact information: ______________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
    Names of Band(s): ______________________________________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
  
    Band Contact Information: _______________________________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________   
 
Note: The issuance of a BLOCK PARTY permit DOES NOT waive the local noise ordinance, which prevents 
excessive noises from 10PM to 8AM.  Please include the address, name, and signature of every property owner on the 
street that is being proposed to shut down stating their approval for the block party.  
 

DISCHARGE OF FIREWORKS IS PROHIBITED. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FILM / PHOTOGRAPHY 
 
1) Title of Production: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
2) Type of Production (check any that applies): 



 
 
  Feature Film    Promotional Video    Documentary/Education  
  TV Series/Movie    TV Commercial     Student Film/Photography  
  Commercial Photography   Portrait/Still Photography   Other: _________________________ 
 
3) Producer:  _____________________________________ _____________________________________ 
   
   Cell/Email: __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4) Director:  ________________________________________ 
 
5) Location Manager:  _____________________________ Cell/Email:  ____________________________ 
 
6) Description/Summary of Scene(s): ________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7) # in Crew: __________  # in Cast/Talent: __________  # of Vehicles: __________ 
 
8) Please provide an agenda/timeline of the photo shoot and a contact list.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAGE / REVIEWING STAND REQUEST 
 

Large Stage Costs:      Stage 20’ x 24’       Stage 24’ x 24’    Stage 24’ x 24’ with Banner Frame   
 
A)  Street Use - $750.00 (Street Venues) Beach Use - $1,000.00 (Beach Venues) 
 



 
Small Stage Costs:     Reviewing Stand 8’ x 14‘  
 
B)  Street Use - $250.00 (Street Venues) Beach Use - $500.00 (Beach Venues)  
 
C)  Lights-Electricians:  There is an additional $250 for electrical set-up 
 
D)  Call In:  additional $250 charge, if workers need to be called in to break down stage and/or secure in place due to 
bad weather, heavy rain, winds more than 30mph, etc. 
 
E)  Special Set-up:  additional $250 charge, if workers need to come back and set-up outside of normal working hours 
for the Department of Public Works. 
 
F)  Banners for banner frame must be supplied to DPW 48 hours prior to event.  Organizer is responsible to collect 
banners following stage dismantle.  Describe banners/signs in detail (please attach a photo or layout): 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
G)  Foul Weather, Heavy Rain, High Wind (Over 30 MPH) 
      This person is the sole event manager to cancel or postpone stage usage with consultation from the   
      Director of Public Works or designee.    
 
 Coordinator:  ____________________________________________    Cell #:  __________________ 

 
SITE PLAN SHOULD INCLUDE LOCATION, STAGE DIRECTION, ETC. 

 
    1ST DAY  2ND DAY  3RD DAY  4TH DAY 

Day of the Week 
(SU,M,TU,W,TH,F,SA) 
 

    

Date 
(MM/DD/YY) 

    

Delivery/Removal 
(00:00AM/PM) 

    

Set-Up 
(00:00AM/PM) 

    

Event Starts 
(00:00 AM/PM) 
 

    

Event Ends 
(00:00 AM/PM) 

    

Break-Down 
(00:00 AM/PM) 

    

 
 
 
 

FESTIVAL 1 DAY OR MULTIPLE DAYS 
 

1) Location (list any street closing): __________________________________________________________  
 



 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2) Number of Non-Food Vendor Spaces: __________    Number of Food Vendor Spaces: __________ 
 
3) List of Vendors and Contact Numbers–fully updated list must be turned in one week prior to event. 
(NOTE: All vendor applications, fire permits and fees should be collected by the event organizer and distributed to 
appropriate department(s) at one time.   
Food Vendors must meet the requirements of the Cape May County Board of Health) 
                                                                                                                    
4) Location of Stages / Performance Areas (site plan): ____________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5) Type of Entertainment / Music: ____________________________________________________________  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ *Attach 
a program schedule–may submit draft version–final version must be turned in 1 week prior to event 
 
6) Are Vendor fees charged:   YES  NO   Amount: $__________________  
 
7) Purpose of the fees and beneficiary: ________________________________________________________ 
 
8) Special Guests (i.e., Mascot, Politician, Musician, Controversial, Actor, Actress, etc.): 
 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________ 
        
 9)  These items are PROHIBTED in the Festival Area: 
 
 - Any Glass Bottles and Glass Containers served at festival sites 
 
 - Any type of Back Packs 
 
 - Any type of Coolers                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC WORKS                           
 

1) Are NW trash/recycling receptacles and removal requested:       YES  NO 
    Is the event organization ordering the Dumpsters:     YES  NO   
 Number Requested: Trash-________ Recycling can/bottles-________ Dumpsters-________ 

 



 
VENDOR COORDINATOR PLEASE ATTACH A RECLYCING/TRASH PLAN 

- All trash from set-up to clean-up must be removed and placed in the dumpsters provided.  No stockpiling of trash behind space.   
- Walkways behind vendors must be kept clear of all obstructions at all times. 
- In cooking areas, the complete floor space must be covered with approved material to protect the ground surface, for example,   
   tar paper. 
- Water is available at the sink location.  All grey water must be contained and disposed of in containers at the sink location.   
   No dumping of any water in the event area is allowed. 
- Before festivals, maps will be provided indicating locations of trash and recycle dumpsters, grey  water, and grease disposal. 
- Cardboard boxes intended for disposal must be broken down.  All cardboard must be put into dumpsters designated for cardboard.  
Improper disposal of any material (including grey water, trash, garbage, and recyclables) – will be subject to legal 
action for violations under Ordinance #374-19.5. 
 
The information above needs to be distributed by the Event Organizer to all vendors prior to and during the event on 
their own stationary.   
Name of person responsible for distributing information to vendors: _________________________________ 
 
2) Do you request the use of any portable equipment from Public Works:  YES  NO 
    (Please write an amount next to each requested item) 
 
Traffic Cones-________ Fencing-________ Trash/Recycle Cans-________  Eating Tables-________ 
 
Grease Drums-________ Ash Drums-______ Grey Water Tanks-________  Sinks-________ 
Additional Equipment Requested _____________________________________________________________ 
 
3) Restrooms/Port-a-Pots: Will your event direct people to public restrooms- YES  NO 
          Will your event use portable toilets/trailers-  YES  NO 
           Is the event organizer ordering toilets/trailers-  YES  NO 
           If yes, how many will be used: ________ 
           Cleaning schedule will be ________ cleaning(s) per day or as directed NW Officials 
           Name of company: __________________________________________________ 
           Contact Person/Cell: ________________________________________________ 
Note: One toilet for every 500 people is requested for events lasting over 2 hours – an appropriate number of these toilets should be 
handicapped accessible. 
 
4) Will your event have any temporary structures, fences, or fixtures:  YES  NO 
Anchors, pins, spikes or other materials are strictly prohibited in asphalt, boardwalk, and/or concrete to secure objects. 
 
    If so, please describe in detail: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Event Organizer is required to contact the Construction office for permits. 609 522 2030 ext. 1560 
 
 
The City of North Wildwood will not allow any markings and/or painting of the streets, sidewalks, boardwalks, and parking lots, except those 
made by approved marking devices.  Call the Dept. of Public Works to arrange for an appointment with the Director of Public Works prior to 
the event to submit marking devices for approval.  If unapproved marking devices are used, the event/organization will be charged with the cost 
of removing and restoring to prior to event status.  In addition, this department will likely not approve this organization’s future events.   
 
        Respectfully,  
 
       Doug Nordberg, Director of Public Works 
 

RECREATION & TOURISM DEPARTMENT 
 

1) Do you anticipate the need for Rec/Tour Dept. staff to support your event: YES  NO 
 If yes, how many- __________   
   Purpose: _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 



 
2) Will you require the use of Recreation Dept. Facilities (Rec Center/Parks): YES  NO 
 
     If yes, please describe in detail (include dates/times)- __________________________________________ 
 
    _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3) Will you require the use of Recreation Dept. portable equipment:  YES  NO 
     (Please write an amount next to each requested item) 
     
    Bleachers- ______ Coolers-______   Chairs (folding)-______   Tables-______   Chairs (ceremony)-______ 
     
    Sound System (2 or 4 speakers) w/ microphone-______      Podium-______   Tents-______   Signs-______                    
circle one 
 
    Additional Equipment-___________________________________________________________________ 
 
   ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
       
      1ST DAY 2ND DAY  3RD DAY 
     
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4) Does the publicity plan for this event include any of the below:    YES  NO 
 □  Posters   □  Website   □  Social Media  □  Radio  □  TV  □  Newspaper/Publication  □  Other 
 
5) List any planned Print/Radio/TV Advertising: _________________________________________________ 
     
 Include copies of any direct mail/invitations/email/internet/posters/press releases/media kit being sent out 

 
 
 
 
 

 

BUILDINGS, GROUNDS & PARKS DEPARTMENT 
 
1) Will any object, such as tent posts or signs be driven into the ground:   YES  NO 
     (If yes, please consult with B.G. & P. Dept. to avoid damaging the irrigation system) 
 
2) Will the event require the closure of any park / City area to the general public:  YES  NO 

Day of the Week 
(SU,M,TU,W,TH,F,SA) 
 

  
 

 

Date 
(MM/DD/YY) 

  
 

 
 

Equipment Requested 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 

Set-Up 
(00:00 AM/PM) 

   

Break-Down 
(00:00 AM/PM) 

   

Location: 
 
 
 

   



 
 
  If yes, please describe in detail: __________________________________________________________ 
 
3) Will the boardwalk be used to secure any items (tents, signs or any other type of structure):  YES       NO 
 
     If yes, please describe in detail: __________________________________________________________ 
 
4) Will you have any vehicles on the boardwalk (Weight limit of 5000 lbs.):    YES       NO 
    (Vehicles are restricted to the Tram Path only) 
     If yes, please describe in detail: __________________________________________________________ 
 
  ______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5) Will your event have any electrical needs:   YES  NO 
    (Please attach a separate page for number of hook-ups needed at vendor locations and the electrical layout) 
    Will you have any sound / lighting equipment:  YES   NO 
    Will you be using a lighting or sound contractor:  YES   NO 
 
     Contractor Information: _______________________________________________________________ 
 
6) Overhead banners, banner flags and/or signs installed on City property 
          (Please request a banner specifications sheet with your application.  All banners need City approval before being created and displayed. 
               Organizer is responsible to collect banners following the event) 

     a) Overhead Banners should be professionally made and measure 40 feet in length by 3 feet in width 
 b) To get maximum display use; heavy duty grommets should be 16 inches apart and wind flaps cut   
 and stitched in banner, should be constructed to last 2-4 weeks of display in the wind  
 c) Banner Flags (10 poles) should be 5 feet in length by 30 inches wide (display should be 53” long) 
 d) Welcome Area Billboard is 8 feet in length by 12 feet in width 
 
7) Describe banners/signs in detail with proper wording (please attach a photo/layout): _____________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
8) Electrical service fees shall be paid by the vendor: 
    (Please attach a separate page for number of hook-ups needed at vendor locations and the electrical layout) 
 A) $35 per event for ONE twenty-amp  $50 per event for ONE thirty-amp   
      $75 per event for ONE fifty-amp  
 
 B) Extra circuits will be provided only if there is a surplus of circuits after all vendors who have paid for 
electrical service have been provided with electrical service and thereafter will be provided on a first-requested and 
paid/first-provided basis.  
  
 C) Any service calls to a vendor that is necessitated by an overloaded circuit will result in the vendor       
being assessed an additional $70 fee, which sum is payable in the advance of the restoration of electrical service to the 
vendor. 

 
 

NORTH WILDWOOD BEACH PATROL 
 

1) What location(s) of the beach/ocean will be used and for what purpose: ___________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 



 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2) Do you anticipate the need for NWBP staff to support your event:  YES   NO 
 
    If yes, how many- ________ Purpose: ________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3) Will you require the use of NWBP Facilities, Vehicles, or Equipment:  YES   NO 
    (If yes, please describe in detail; include dates and times) 

 
      1st DAY  2nd DAY      3rd DAY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

CITY CLERK OFFICE 
 

1) Number of Non-Food Vendor Spaces: __________    Number of Food Vendor Spaces: __________ 
    (Final Vendor list must be turned in 1 week prior to event date) 
    (Organizer is responsible for obtaining vendor permits from Clerk’s office & distributing vendor permits to vendors 
      before inspection) 
 Vendor Fees      1 Day         2 Day               3 Day  

 
 
 
 
 
 

2) Will your event require bulk special event parking passes: YES  NO 
    FOR 3-DAY OR MORE EVENTS ONLY    
 
3) If yes, how many: __________  List dates for passes: _________________________________ 
    *Minimum 250 for out of season events and 500 for in season events; $5 per day/per vehicle  
    (Must be paid for 30 days prior to date of event)  (In season is Memorial Day to Labor Day of each calendar year) 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
1) Contact information of person in charge of event: ______________________________________________ 
 
2) Contact information of person on-site of event: ________________________________________________ 
 

Day of the Week 
(SU,M,TU,W,TH,F,SA) 
 

  
 

 

Date 
(MM/DD/YY) 

  
 

 
 

Equipment Requested 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 

Set-Up 
(00:00 AM/PM) 

   

Break-Down 
(00:00 AM/PM) 

   

Location: 
 
 

   

First Year Fee $ 10.00 $ 20.00 $ 40.00 
Second Year Fee $ 20.00 $ 40.00 $ 80.00 

Third & Fourth Year Fee $ 50.00 $ 100.00 $ 150.00 

Fifth & Plus Year Fee $ 75.00 $ 150.00 $ 200.00 



 
3) Street or sidewalk closure(s): YES  NO   
  Plan approved: YES  NO 
 
4) Barricade request (fencing/barrels/cones)  YES  NO 
      Plan submitted:   YES  NO   
  Plan approved:   YES  NO 
 
5) Responsible party for barricade set-up (Federal Fencing-Atlas-Police, etc.):______________________________ 
     
    Contact information: _____________________________________________________________________  
 
6) Signage requested “NO PARKING”, Other (describe below):  Post Time: ____________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
7) Equipment stored overnight: YES  NO   
 
    Location: __________________________________ Contact Info: _____________________________ 
 
8) Site Plan – Detour/Traffic plan submitted:  YES  NO  
  Police Approval:     YES  NO 
 
9) Police requested or required for event:  YES  NO Start time: _____________ 
    (Please write amount next to request)      Finish time: ____________ 
 
    Officers- __________ Traffic Posts- __________ Overnight Security- __________ 
 
10) Music: YES  NO Start time: ____________  Finish time: ____________ 
      Location: _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
11) Alcohol being served at event: YES  NO Start Time: ________ End Time: ________  
        State ABC Approval: YES  NO  
  City Approval:  YES  NO 
12) Staging Area:   YES  NO  
  Plan Submitted:  YES   NO  
  Plan Approved:    YES          NO 
 
13) First-Aid/EMS on site:  YES  NO 
 
14) Large Events: Command Post being utilized:  YES  NO 
 
      Location of Command Post: _____________________________________ Phone #: _______________ 
 
      List of Department representatives and contact numbers: 
      (Please put on a separate sheet) 
 
 

FIRE & EMS DEPARTMENT 
 

1) Do you anticipate the need for Fire / EMS staff / equipment to support your event: YES  NO 
    Fire Chief will determine the amount of staff and/or equipment needed for your request.  attendance - ______________ 
 
3) Purpose: _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 



 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4) Will you require the use of Fire Dept. Facilities or portable equipment:  YES  NO 
 
5) If yes, please describe in detail, including dates and times: _____________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSTRUCTION, FIRE & HOUSING DEPARTMENT 
 
 
1) Will there be a bonfire, open flame, lighting, cooking, extinguishing, or burning of any material: YES   NO 
 
2) If yes, please describe in detail: __________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
3) Will there be any tents used larger than 900 square feet and more than 30 feet in any direction:  YES    NO 
 
4) If yes, please describe in detail: __________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
5) Permit #: ________________ (Will be issued after Mayor & Council Approval) 
    **The number of bonfire permits are limited and based on the availability of fire personnel** 
  
  
 a) Application for a permit required by this code shall be made to the fire official in such form and      
detail as the fire official shall prescribe.  Applications for permits shall be accompanied by plans or drawings as 
required by the fire official for evaluation of the application. 
 
 b) Type 1 Permit: PERMIT FEE - $54.00 (non-refundable) 
   
  1) The use of any open flame or flame-producing device, in connection with any public    
  gathering for purpose of entertainment, amusement, or recreation. 

 
  2) The erection, operation or maintenance of any tent or canopy that is greater than 900 square feet and  
  more than 30 feet in any direction. 

 
 
 
 

FIRE APPLICATION PERMIT FEE 
 
The uniform fire code states: 
 
“Permits shall be required, and obtained from the local enforcing agency for the activities specified in this section, 
except where they are an integral part of the process or activity by reason of which a use is required to be registered and 
regulated as a life hazard use.  Permits shall at all times be kept in the premises designated therein and shall at all times 
be subject to inspection by the Fire Official.” [N.J.A.C. 5:70-2.7(a)] 



 
**PRINT CLEARLY and FILL IN ALL BLANKS** 

 
Date of Application: ______________ Date of Activity: ____________ Time: ____________ 
 
Location of where Activity will occur: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Name of Applicant: _______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Name of Organization: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone/Fax Number: _____________________________    Emergency Number: _______________________ 
 
Block/Lot: ____________________________________     Registration Number: ______________________ 
 
The above named applicant hereby requests permission to conduct the following activity at the above indication 
location: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
And for keeping, storage, occupancy, sale, handling, or manufacture of the following: 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(State quantities for each category to be stored, or used and the method of storage or use:) 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
I hereby acknowledge that I have read this application, that the information given is correct, and that I am the owner, or 
duly authorized to act in the owner’s behalf and as such hereby agree to comply with the applicable requirements of the 
fire code as well as any specific conditions imposed by the Fire Official. 
 
___________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Applicant Signature      Fire Official Signature 
         
        ________________  ________________ 
        Fee Amount   Permit Type 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PERMIT /APPROVAL / AUTHORIZATION 
 
 
Event Name: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
Date(s) of Event: ____________________ 
 
Mayor & Council:_____________________________________________________ Date: ___________ 



 
 
City Clerk: _________________________________________________________ Date:  __________ 
 
Director of Tourism: ___________________________________________________ Date: ___________ 
 
Application Fee waived:          YES   NO   
 
Service Fees waived:              YES   NO 
 
 
  Approved as submitted.    
 
  Approved with the following conditions: 
 
 1. ________________________________________________________________________________ 
   
 __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 2. ________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
 __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 3. _______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 4. ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 __________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
   
Office use only:  
 
Final Date of Approval:  _____________________  Projected Total Costs for this event: ____________  
         
Date Permit Issued: __________ Permit Number: ______________ 
 
Permit Cost: __________  Total City Departmental Projected Costs: __________ 
 
 
 

 

 

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
 
 
Date of Preliminary Meeting: _______________________ 
 
Meeting Notes: ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 



 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Pre-event Meeting: __________________________ 
 
Meeting Notes: ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

EVENT CHECKLIST 
 

 ________  Application Fee Paid 
 

 ________  Certificate of Insurance listing N.W. as Additionally Insured 
 

 ________  Additional Insured Endorsement Page(s) attached 
 

 ________  Hold Harmless completed & signed 
 

 ________  Detailed Site Plan defining the logistics of the event 
 

 ________  Vendor list submitted to Clerk’s Office 
 

 ________  Copy of extra materials such as schedule, agenda, flyers, timeline, etc. 
 

 ________  Additional applications (State Police-BOH-NJDOT-Fire Permit-ABC-Tent Permit) 
 

 ________  Special Event Parking Passes Paid 
 

 ________  Miscellaneous 
 

 ________  Ready to be placed on the DMS 
. 

 
 
 
 

TREASURER DEPARTMENT 
 

 
BILLING 

 
_______________________________________________   ____________________ 
Name of Event        Date of Event 



 
 
 
Application Fee   $ __________  Non-Profit $25.00  For-Profit $50.00 
 
Police Dept.    $ __________ 
 
Fire Dept.    $ __________ 
 
Public Works Dept.   $ __________ 
 
Buildings, Grounds, Electric-Parks $ __________ 
 
Clerk’s Office    $ __________ 
 
Construction, Fire & Housing  $ __________ 
 
Beach Patrol    $ __________ 
 
Recreation & Tourism Dept.  $ __________ 
 
Stage Rental    $ __________ 
 
Special Event Parking Passes  $ __________ 
 
Miscellaneous Costs   $ __________ 
 
TOTAL    $ __________ 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 































 

CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
CALENDAR YEAR 2023 

ORDINANCE TO EXCEED THE MUNICIPAL BUDGET  
APPROPRIATION LIMITS  

AND TO ESTABLISH A CAP BANK 
 (N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.14) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 1897 

 
WHEREAS, the Local Government Cap Law, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.1 et seq., provides that in the 
preparation of its annual budget, a municipality shall limit any increase in said budget to 2.5% 
unless authorized by ordinance to increase it to 3.5% over the previous year’s final appropriations, 
subject to certain exceptions; and 

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.15a provides that a municipality may, when authorized by 
ordinance, appropriate the difference between the amount of its actual final appropriation and the 
3.5% percentage rate as an exception to its final appropriations in either of the next two succeeding 
years; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood in the County of Cape May 
finds it advisable and necessary to increase its CY 2023 budget by up to 3.5% over the previous 
year’s final appropriations, in the interest of promoting the health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood hereby determines that a 
3.5% increase in the budget for said year, amounting to $ 761,041.74 in excess of the increase in 
final appropriations otherwise permitted by the Local Government Cap Law, is advisable and 
necessary; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood hereby determines that any 
amount authorized hereinabove that is not appropriated, as part of the final budget shall be retained 
as an exception to final appropriation in either of the next two succeeding years. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May a majority of the full authorized membership of this 
governing body affirmatively concurring, that, in the CY 2023 budget year, the final 
appropriations of the City of North Wildwood shall, in accordance with this ordinance and 
N.J.S.A. 40A: 4-45.14, be increased by 3.5 %, amounting to $ 761,041.74 and that the CY 2023 
municipal budget for the City of North Wildwood be approved and adopted in accordance with this 
ordinance.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that any amount authorized hereinabove that is not appropriated 
as part of the final budget shall be retained as an exception to final appropriation in either of the 
next two succeeding years. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that a certified copy of this ordinance as introduced be filed 
with the Director of the Division of Local Government Services within 5 days of introduction.  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that a certified copy of this ordinance upon adoption, with the 
recorded vote included thereon, be filed with said Director within 5 days after such adoption. 

 
APPROVED: 
 

      ______________________________ 
      Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
       
 

ATTEST: 
 

_______________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 
Introduced:   February 21, 2023  
Advertised:   March 1, 2023  
Hearing/Final: March 21, 2023  
Advertised:    March 29, 2023  

    
 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, NEW JERSEY 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. 1898 
 

BOND ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE 
ACQUISITION OF VARIOUS FIRE APPARATUS, 
BY AND FOR THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD, 
IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW 
JERSEY; APPROPRIATING $989,600 THEREFOR 
AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $940,120 
IN BONDS OR NOTES TO FINANCE PART OF 
THE COST THEREOF 

 

BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NORTH WILDWOOD, IN THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY, STATE OF NEW JERSEY (not 

less than two-thirds of all members thereof affirmatively concurring) AS FOLLOWS: 

  SECTION 1.  The improvement or purpose described in Section 3 of this bond 

ordinance is hereby authorized as a general improvement or purpose to be undertaken by the City of 

North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey (the “City”).  For the said 

improvement or purpose stated in Section 3, there is hereby appropriated the sum of $989,600, 

said sum being inclusive of $49,480 as the amount of down payment for said improvements or 

purposes as required by the Local Bond Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:2-1 et seq., as amended and 

supplemented (the “Local Bond Law”).  The down payment is now available therefor by virtue of 

either provisions or a provision in a previously adopted budget or budgets of the City for down 

payment or for capital improvement purposes or from moneys actually held by the City. 

  SECTION 2.   For the financing of said improvement or purpose described in 

Section 3 hereof, and to meet the part of the $989,600 appropriation not provided for by application 

hereunder of the down payment, negotiable bonds of the City are hereby authorized to be issued 

in the principal amount of $940,120 pursuant to the Local Bond Law.  In anticipation of the 

issuance of said bonds and to temporarily finance said improvements or purposes, negotiable notes 

of the City in the principal amount not exceeding $940,120 are hereby authorized to be issued 

pursuant to and within the limitations prescribed by said Local Bond Law. 

  SECTION 3.  (a)  The improvement hereby authorized and purpose for the financing 

of which said bonds or notes are to be issued is for the acquisition of various fire apparatus including, 



but not limited to, a Rescue Pumper Fire Truck, and all work, materials, equipment, labor and 

appurtenances as necessary therefor or incidental thereto. 

  (b) The estimated maximum amount of bonds or notes to be issued for said 

improvement or purpose is $940,120. 

  (c) The estimated cost of said improvement or purpose is $989,600, the excess 

thereof over the said estimated maximum amount of bonds or notes to be issued therefor is the down 

payment available for said improvement or purpose in the amount of $49,480. 

  SECTION 4.   In the event the United States of America, the State of New Jersey, the 

County of Cape May and/or a private entity make a contribution or grant in aid to the City, for the 

improvement and purpose authorized hereby and the same shall be received by the City prior to the 

issuance of the bonds or notes authorized in Section 2 hereof, then the amount of such bonds or notes 

to be issued shall be reduced by the amount so received from the United States of America, the State 

of New Jersey, the County of Cape May and/or a private entity.  In the event, however, that any 

amount so contributed or granted by the United States of America, the State of New Jersey, the County 

of Cape May and/or a private entity, shall be received by the City after the issuance of the bonds or 

notes authorized in Section 2 hereof, then such funds shall be applied to the payment of the bonds or 

notes so issued and shall be used for no other purpose. 

  SECTION 5.   All bond anticipation notes issued hereunder shall mature at such times 

as may be determined by the Chief Financial Officer of the City, provided that no note shall mature 

later than one (1) year from its date unless such bond anticipation notes are permitted to mature at 

such later date in accordance with applicable law.  The notes shall bear interest at such rate or rates 

and be in such form as may be determined by the Chief Financial Officer.  The Chief Financial Officer 

of the City shall determine all matters in connection with the notes issued pursuant to this bond 

ordinance, and the signature of the Chief Financial Officer upon the notes shall be conclusive evidence 

as to all such determinations.  All notes issued hereunder may be renewed from time to time in 

accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:2-8(a).  The Chief Financial Officer is hereby 

authorized to sell part or all of the notes from time to time at public or private sale and to deliver them 

to the purchaser thereof upon receipt of payment of the purchase price and accrued interest thereon 

from their dates to the date of delivery thereof.  The Chief Financial Officer is directed to report in 

writing to the governing body at the meeting next succeeding the date when any sale or delivery of 

the notes pursuant to this bond ordinance is made.  Such report must include the principal amount, 



the description, the interest rate, and the maturity schedule of the notes so sold, the price obtained and 

the name of the purchaser.  

  SECTION 6.   The Capital Budget of the City is hereby amended to conform with 

the provisions of this bond ordinance, and to the extent of any inconsistency herewith, a resolution in 

the form promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing full detail of the amended Capital Budget 

as approved by the Director of the Division of Local Government Services, New Jersey Department 

of Community Affairs, will be on file in the Office of the Clerk and will be available for public 

inspection. 

  SECTION 7.   The following additional matters are hereby determined, declared, 

recited and stated: 

  (a) The improvement or purpose described in Section 3 of this bond ordinance is 

not a current expense and is an improvement or purpose which the City may lawfully undertake as a 

general improvement or purpose, and no part of the cost thereof has been or shall be specially assessed 

on property specially benefited thereby. 

  (b) The average period of usefulness of said improvement or purpose within the 

limitations of said Local Bond Law, according to the reasonable life thereof computed from the date 

of the said bonds authorized by this bond ordinance, is 10 years. 

  (c) The supplemental debt statement required by the Local Bond Law has been 

duly made and filed in the Office of the Clerk of the City and a complete executed duplicate thereof 

has been filed in the Office of the Director of the Division of Local Government Services, New Jersey 

Department of Community Affairs, and such statement shows that the gross debt of the City as defined 

in the Local Bond Law is increased by the authorization of the bonds or notes provided for in this 

bond ordinance by $940,120 and the said obligations authorized by this bond ordinance will be within 

all debt limitations prescribed by said Local Bond Law. 

  (d) An aggregate amount not exceeding $200,000 for items of expense listed in 

and permitted under section 20 of the Local Bond Law is included in the estimated cost indicated 

herein for the purpose or improvement hereinbefore described. 

  SECTION 8.   The full faith and credit of the City are hereby pledged to the punctual 

payment of the principal of and the interest on the obligations authorized by this bond ordinance.  The 

obligations shall be direct, unlimited obligations of the City, and the City shall be obligated to levy 



ad valorem taxes upon all the taxable property within the City for the payment of the obligations and 

the interest thereon without limitation as to rate or amount. 

  SECTION 9.   The City hereby declares the intent of the City to issue the bonds or 

bond anticipation notes in the amount authorized in Section 2 of this bond ordinance and to use 

proceeds to pay or reimburse expenditures for the costs of the purposes described in Section 3 of this 

bond ordinance.  This Section 9 is a declaration of intent within the meaning and for purposes of 

Treasury Regulations §1.100-2 or any successor provisions of federal income tax law. 

  SECTION 10.   The City Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized to prepare and 

to update from time to time as necessary a financial disclosure document to be distributed in 

connection with the sale of obligations of the City and to execute such disclosure document on behalf 

of the City.  The City Chief Financial Officer is further authorized to enter into the appropriate 

undertaking to provide secondary market disclosure on behalf of the City pursuant to Rule 10c2-12 

of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Rule”) for the benefit of holders and beneficial 

owners of obligations of the City and to amend such undertaking from time to time in connection with 

any change in law, or interpretation thereof, provided such undertaking is and continues to be, in the 

opinion of a nationally recognized bond counsel, consistent with the requirements of the Rule.  In the 

event that the City fails to comply with its undertaking, the City shall not be liable for any monetary 

damages, and the remedy shall be limited to specific performance of the undertaking. 

  SECTION 11.   The City covenants to maintain the exclusion from gross income 

under Section 103(a) of the Code of the interest on all bonds and notes issued under this ordinance. 

SECTION 12.   This bond ordinance shall take effect twenty (20) days after the first 

publication thereof after final adoption and approval by the Mayor, as provided by the Local Bond 

Law. 

 
 

____________________________________
Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 

 
_________________________ 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
Introduced:   February 21, 2023 
Advertised:   March 1, 2023  
Hearing/Final: March 21, 2023 
Advertised:   March 29, 2023 

 
 

(Effective April 19, 2023) 
 



              CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
                   NOTICE OF HEARING 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on Tuesday, February 21, 
2023, at 10:00 AM in the City Council Chambers at the 
North Wildwood City Hall, 901 Atlantic Avenue, North 
Wildwood, New Jersey, a public hearing, as required by 
N.J.S.A. 40:56-84, will be held upon the 2023 Budget of 
the Wildwoods Boardwalk Special Improvement District 
Management Corporation.   The budget is set forth below 
and all persons having as interest therein shall be given an 
opportunity to be heard at the public hearing thereon.   
 

Wildwoods Boardwalk SID Management Corporation 

North Wildwood Special Assessment 
2023 Budget Proposal 

 

INCOME  2023  

Special Assessment Levy   $       62,500.00  

   $       

TOTAL INCOME    $   62,500.00  
   
EXPENSES  
Boardwalk Cleaning    $       10,000.00 
Bathroom Staffing    $       10,000.00  
Bathroom Supplies   $       15,000.00 
Insurance   $       25,000.00 
Office Expenses   $       2,500.00 

TOTAL EXPENSE    $   62,500.00  
 

By Order of the Mayor and Council 
of the City of North Wildwood 
W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 





CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
AWARDING CONTRACT FOR BEACH ICED COFFEE SALES CONCESSION 

 
WHEREAS, oral auction bids were received at the North Wildwood City Hall on Wednesday, February 

8, 2023 by the City Clerk for a beach ice cream sales concession for the 2023 summer season; and 

WHEREAS, Aladdin’s Beach Enterprises, LLC of Bellmawr, NJ was the highest bidder; and 

WHEREAS, Aladdin’s Beach Enterprises, LLC has paid the deposit as required by the bid 
specifications; and 

WHEREAS, Aladdin’s Beach Enterprises, LLC has submitted and Council has reviewed the bidder’s 
Federal Government-issued DD-214 of business partner Jeffrey Cunningham, the bidder’s Non-Collusion 
Affidavit, the bidders’ Disclosure of Investment Activities in Russia, Belarus and Iran, and the bidder’s 
Ownership Disclosure Statement; and 

WHEREAS, the City Administrator and City Solicitor have reviewed the bid of Aladdin’s Beach 
Enterprises, LLC and have advised that the bidder complied with the instructions to bidders and conditions 
of the award; and 

WHEREAS, Council is satisfied that Aladdin’s Beach Enterprises, LLC is a responsible bidder. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

 
1)  All of the statements of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 

same were set forth at length. 
 

2)  The contract for the beach iced coffee sales concession for the 2023 summer season hereby is 
awarded to Aladdin’s Beach Enterprises, LLC of Bellmawr, NJ for a price of $ 140,000.00. 
 

3)  The Mayor and City Clerk be and they hereby are authorized and directed to sign the contract that 
was included with the contract bidding materials and to deliver same to Aladdin’s Beach Enterprises, LLC 
for execution and return. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OFFERED BY: _____________________________SECONDED BY: ____________________________ 
*************************************************************************************** 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, 
do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and 
Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 21st day of February, 2023. 
 
Dated: ____February 21, 2023_______                                       Signed: ___________________________ 
                           W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
                        APPROVED: ____________________________ 
                 Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
  Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent                                Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent  
Tolomeo     Koehler 
Rullo                                                                     Bishop 
Kane                                                                              Zampirri 
Del Conte        
 
 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
AWARDING CONTRACT FOR BEACH UMBRELLA STAND CONCESSION 

 
WHEREAS, oral auction bids were received at the North Wildwood City Hall on Wednesday, February 

8, 2023 by the City Clerk for a beach umbrella stand concession for the 2023 summer season; and 

WHEREAS, Sunbrella, Inc of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, was the only bidder; and 

WHEREAS, Sunbrella, Inc. has paid the deposit as required by the bid specifications; and 

WHEREAS, Sunbrella, Inc. timely has submitted and Council has reviewed the bidder’s Ownership 
Disclosure Statement, the bidder’s Non-Collusion Affidavit and the bidder’s New Jersey Business 
Registration Certificate; and 

WHEREAS, the City Administrator and City Solicitor have reviewed the bid of Sunbrella, Inc. and 
have advised that the bidder complied with the instructions to bidders and conditions of the award; and 

WHEREAS, based on the City’s prior experiences with the president of Sunbrella, Inc., William Kelly, 
Council is satisfied that Sunbrella, Inc. is a responsible bidder. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Members of Council of the City of North 
Wildwood, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey as follows: 

 
1)  All of the statements of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though the 

same were set forth at length. 
 

2)  The contract for the beach umbrella stand concession for the 2023 summer season hereby is awarded 
to Sunbrella, Inc. of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania for a price of $15,000.00. 
 

3)  The Mayor and City Clerk be and they hereby are authorized and directed to sign the contract that 
was included with the contract bidding materials and to deliver same to Sunbrella, Inc. for execution and 
return. 

 
 
 
 

OFFERED BY: _____________________________SECONDED BY: ____________________________ 
*************************************************************************************** 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, 
do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and 
Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 21st day of February, 2023. 
 
Dated: ____February 21, 2023_______                                       Signed: ___________________________ 
                           W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
                        APPROVED: ____________________________ 
                 Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
  Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent                                Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent  
Tolomeo     Koehler 
Rullo                                                                     Bishop 
Kane                                                                              Zampirri 
Del Conte        
 
 



CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF AN ANIMAL CONTROL AND WILDLIFE 

REMOVAL SERVICES CONTRACT FOR 2023 - 2024 
 

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 4:19-15.16b requires the governing body of every municipality to appoint a Certified 
Animal Control Officer who shall be responsible for animal control within the jurisdiction of the municipality 
and, therefore, the City of North Wildwood has need to enter into an animal control and wildlife removal 
services contract as a non-fair and open contract pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.5; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Agent for the City of North Wildwood has determined and certified in writing 
that the value of the acquisition of required services will be more than $17,500 and, as a result, the provisions of 
N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.5, et. seq., are applicable to the subject contract; and 

WHEREAS, the Local Public Contracts Law, at N.J.S.A. 40A:11-3, provides that when the price of a 
contract does not exceed the current bid threshold then it may be awarded without public advertising for bids 
and the Local Public Contracts Law, at N.J.S.A. 40A:11-15, allows for the award of such contracts for a period 
of up to 24 months; and 

WHEREAS, Shore Animal Control Services, L.L.C. has submitted a contract proposal indicating that, for 
2023 and 2024, it will provide animal control and wildlife removal services for the sum of $32,400.00 at the 
rate of $15,600.00 for 2023 and $16,800 for 2024; and 

WHEREAS, Shore Animal Control Services, L.L.C. has the State of New Jersey licensing and 
certifications and experience necessary to perform the required services under the terms and conditions of the 
proposed contract; and 

WHEREAS, the price of the proposed contract will not exceed the current bid threshold and, therefore, the 
subject contract can be awarded without public advertising for bids; and 

WHEREAS, Shore Animal Control Services, L.L.C. has completed and submitted a Business Entity 
Disclosure Certification which certifies that it has not made any reportable contributions to a political or 
candidate committee in the City of North Wildwood in the previous one year, and that the contract will prohibit 
Shore Animal Control Services, L.L.C. from making any reportable contributions through the term of the 
contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of North Wildwood, in the 
County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, as follows: 

1)  All of the statements of the preamble are repeated and are incorporated herein by this reference thereto 
as though the same were set forth at length. 

2)  The Mayor and City Clerk be and they hereby are authorized to execute on behalf of the City of North 
Wildwood a two-year contract with Shore Animal Control Services, L.L.C., the form and substance of which 
shall be approved by the City Solicitor.   

3)  The statutory language required by N.J.S.A. 10:2-1 and 10:5-33 shall be incorporated into the contract 
by reference and the contractor is bound by said language together with the other provisions of the anti-
discrimination laws of the State of New Jersey, Chapter 127 of the Laws of 1975. 

4)  This Resolution shall only be effective when a copy of the certification of availability of funds prepared 
by the Chief Financial Officer of the City is attached hereto. 

 
5)  The Business Entity Disclosure Certification, the determination of value and the New Jersey Business 

Registration Certificate of Shore Animal Control Services, L.L.C. shall be place on file with this resolution. 
 
6)  This Resolution only shall become effective when: 

a. A copy of the New Jersey Business Registration Certificate of Shore Animal Control Services, 
L.L.C. is submitted to the City of North Wildwood pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 52:32-
44b(1) and a copy of that Certificate shall be placed on file with this Resolution.  

b. Shore Animal Control Services, L.L.C. completes and submits a Disclosure of Investment Activities 
in Iran pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-2.1 and a copy of that Disclosure shall be placed on file with 
this Resolution.  



 
7)  A Notice of the Letting of this contract be published in the City’s official newspaper within ten (10) days 

of the date of this Resolution, which notice shall state that this Resolution and the contract are on file and 
available for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk. 

 
 

OFFERED BY: _____________________________SECONDED BY: ____________________________ 
************************************************************************************ 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Council of the City of 
North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 21st day of February, 2023. 
 
Dated: ____February 21, 2023_______                                       Signed: ___________________________ 
                           W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 
 
 
                        APPROVED: ____________________________ 
               Patrick Rosenello, Mayor 
 
 
  Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent                                Aye     Naye     Abstain   Absent  
Tolomeo     Koehler 
Rullo                                                                              Bishop 
Kane                                                                            Zampirri 
Del Conte 

 
 

 















CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 
SURPLUS M939A1 6X6 CARGO TRUCK FROM EASTERN 

SURPLUS & EQUIPMENT CO. AND AUTHORIZING TRADE IN 
OF SURPLUS M923A1 TRUCK NO LONGER NEEDED FOR 

PUBLIC USE BY THE CITY OF NORTH WILDWOOD  
 

WHEREAS, the North Wildwood Fire Department is in need of a cargo 
truck, of which Eastern Surplus & Equipment Company is in possession of an 
M939A1 6x6 Cargo Truck which would be sufficient for the needs of the Fire 
Department; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has determined that an M923A1 
Cargo Truck in its possession, VIN # C52302942, is of little or no value to the City 
and, consequently, desires to trade in said truck as part of the purchase of the 
M939A1 6x6 Cargo Truck from Eastern Surplus & Equipment Company; and  
 

WHEREAS, said purchase would involve the payment of $22,700 plus the 
M932A1 Cargo Truck trade in to Eastern Surplus & Equipment Company for the 
M939A1 6x6 Cargo Truck; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood has agreed to pay the sum of 
$22,700.00 plus the trade in and the City of North Wildwood has certified the 
availability of funds.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of 
the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, as 
follows:  

1. All of the statement of the preamble are incorporated herein by this 
reference thereto as though the same were set forth at length.  
 

2. Ownership of an M923A1 Cargo Truck, along with a payment of $22,700, 
is hereby approved to be transferred to Eastern Surplus & Equipment 
Company in exchange for an M939A1 6x6 Cargo Truck for use by the 
North Wildwood Fire Department. 
 

3. That the appropriate officials of the City of North Wildwood be and they 
are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute any and all 
required documents necessary to conclude the purchase of the M939A1 
6x6 Cargo Truck, involving the payment of $22,700 and the trade in of an 
M923A1 Cargo Truck, said execution to permit the physical transfer of 
said M923A1 Cargo Truck to Eastern Surplus & Equipment Company. 

 

OFFERED BY: _______________      SECONDED BY: ___________________ 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY    COUNTY OF CAPE MAY 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, 
State of New Jersey, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a 
Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City of North Wildwood at a meeting 
duly held on the 21st day of February, 2023. 
 

Dated:   February 21, 2023  Signed: ____________________________                           
      W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 
 

Approved: _______________________        
Patrick Rosenello, Mayor 

 Aye      Nay Abstain Absent  Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo     Koehler     
Rullo     Bishop     
Kane     Zampirri     
Del Conte          

           
RESOLUTION #__________ 



 
City of North Wildwood 
Cape May County, New Jersey 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

APPROVAL TO SUBMIT A GRANT APPLICATION AND EXECUTE 
A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE COUNTY OF CAPE MAY  FOR 

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) INFRASTRUCTURE 
FUNDING 

 

WHEREAS, Cape May County is providing ARPA funding to municipalities for infrastructure 
improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, funding can be provided for a broad range of water, sewer and storm water 

infrastructure improvements in the amount of up to $400,000 per municipality; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Wildwood desires to submit an application to Cape May County to 

take advantage of the APRA funding opportunity and to accept said funding if said application is 
approved. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of North 

Wildwood, Cape May County, New Jersey, that: 
 

1) All of the statements of the preamble are incorporated herein by this reference thereto as though 
the same were set forth at length. 

2) The application for the above stated ARPA Funding is hereby approved. 
3) The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to submit said application to Cape May County 

on behalf of the City of North Wildwood. 
4) The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized, if said application is approved by Cape May 

County, to execute the grant agreement and any other appertaining documents on behalf of the 
City of North Wildwood and that their signatures constitute acceptance of the terms and 
conditions of said grant agreement. 

 
My signature and the City Clerk’s Seal serve to acknowledge the above resolution and constitute 

acceptance of the terms and conditions of the grant agreement and approve the execution of the grant 
agreement as authorized by the resolution above. 

 
SIGNED: __________________________________ 
                Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  __________________________________ 
  (SEAL)  W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 
OFFERED BY:    _________            SECONDED BY:        _____________     
************************************************************************ 
I, W. Scott Jett, City Clerk of the City of North Wildwood, in the County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing is a correct and true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council of the 
City of North Wildwood at a meeting duly held on the 21st day of February 2023. 
 
Dated: February 21, 2023       Signed: ____________________________________ 
                             W. Scott Jett, City Clerk 

 
 

Approved: _________________________________ 
                          Patrick T. Rosenello, Mayor 
 

 Aye Naye Abstain Absent  Aye Naye Abstain Absent 
Tolomeo     Koehler     
Rullo     Bishop     
Kane     Zampirri     
Del Conte          
 

#         -23 


	Atlantic2023SIP.PDF
	ATLANTIC COUNTY
	MUNICIPAL JOINT INSURANCE FUND
	2023 SAFETY
	INCENTIVE PROGRAM
	January 1, 2023
	ATLANTIC COUNTY MUNICIPAL JOINT INSURANCE FUND

	2023 SAFETY INCENTIVE PROGRAM
	INTRODUCTION
	HOW THE PROGRAM WORKS
	2023 SAFETY INCENTIVE PROGRAM SIZE CATEGORIES
	REQUIRED ELEMENTS TO QUALIFY
	SAFETY INCENTIVE AWARDS
	2023 SAFETY CONTRACT
	ATLANTIC COUNTY MUNICIPAL JOINT INSURANCE FUND



